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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Tothe Members of ALOK WORLDWIDE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ALOK WORLDWIDE LIMITED (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Finandal Statements

The management and Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 {'the act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This
responsibility includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assels of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that are operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken
into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to
be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, Including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the
financial statements, that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such
controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s management and Board of Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
auditopinion on the financial statements.
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Opinion

6. In our opinlon and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair-
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in tndia of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March 2018, and its profit and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

7. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), as amended, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Act, we state that this section is not applicable
to the company.

8. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b} in our opinlon proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears
from our examination of those books;

¢} the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the applicable Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules 2014.

e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164{2) of the Act.

“f}  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we report as
under with respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014::

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; as such the
guestion of commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.
iii. There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the period under report to transfer any
sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The question of delay in fransferring such sums
does not arise.

For Narendra Poddar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 106915W

P

Narendra Poddar, Proprietor
Membership No. 041256
Mumbai —16th July, 2018




“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor's Réport of even date on the Financial Statements of ALOK
-WORLDWIDE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) ~

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ALOK WORLDWIDE LIMITED (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditars’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
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financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2}
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Narendra Poddar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 106915W

o
Narendra Potldar, Proprietor
Membership No. 041256
Mumbai - 16" July, 2018




ALOK WORLDWIDE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MAR 2018

AS AT AS AT AS AT AS AT
PARTICULARS NOTES 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-17
Rupees UsD Rupees Usp
1 ASSETS
{1} Non-current assets
(@) Financial Assets
(I} Investments 3 -4,74,82,19,300 7.30,00,000 4,73,32,17,800 7,30,00,000
(ll} Loans 4 - - 3,04,20,92,367 4,69,17,922
(Y  Other Non Current Assets 5 - - - -
{2} Current assets
(a)} Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash eqguivalents [ 5,51,994 8,486 5,50,250 8,486
(i) Loans 7 3,77,94,52,056 5.81,05,994 71,89,63,986 1,10,88,518
{b) Other Current Assets 33 - - 28,010 432
TOTAL 8,52,82 23,350 13,11,14,480 8,49,48,52,413 13,10,15,358
1T EQUITY AND LYABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 9 6,252 100 6,252 100
(b} Other eguity 10 1,13,12,300 1,69,302 1,09,34,519 1,68,640
1,11,18,552 1,69,402 1,09,40,871 1,68,740
{2) Non-current liabilities
(a} Financial llabilities
() Borrowinas 11 - - 8,16,36,69,091 12,59,07,547
{3) Current liabilities
{a) Flnancial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12 6,64,62,083 10,21,800 6,62,64,205 10,241,987
(Iiy Trade payables 13 1,30,088 2,000 69,000 1,064
{h) Other current liabilities 14 8,45,05,12,627 12,99,21,278 25,39,09,246 39,16,020
TOTAL 8,52,82,23,350 13,11,14,480 8,49,48,52,413 13,10,15,358
II1 MNotes forming part of the financiat statements ito 30

As per our report of even date
For Marendra Poddar & Co.

Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 106915W

.
g

Narendra Poddar, Proprietor
Membership No. 041256

Mumbai, 16th July, 2018

Far and on behalf of the Bo

Director




ALOK WORLDWIDE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MAR 2018

From 01-Apr-17 to 31-Mar-18

From 0G1-Apr-16 to 31-Mar-17

PARTICULARS NOTES
Rupees uso Rupees UsbD
I. REVENUE
Income from operations 15 64,15,977 99,554 2,59,49,153 3,86,784
Other income 16 - - B -
Total (I) 64,15,977 99,554 2,59,49,153 3,86,784
II. EXPENSES )
Finance costs 17 63,006,665 97,711 2,32,06,779 3,45,907
QOther expenses 18 76,122 1,181 4,02,043 5,992
Total {IT) 63,82,791 98,892 2,36,08,822 3,51,899
11I. NET PROFIT/LOSS FOR THE PERIOD {I-II) 33,186 662 23,40,331 34,885
IV. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss _ } ; }
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be _ _ _ }
reclassified to profit or loss
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Net exchange Profit/Loss on translation 1,44,498.00 (2,78,540.00)
(ii) Income tax retating to items that will be _ R _ _
reciassified te profit or loss
V. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 1,77,684 662 20,61,791 34,885
PERIOD
viI. EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS
Basic 21 1,777 7 20,618 349
Diluted 21 1,777 ¢ 7 20,618 349
VII. Notes forming part of the financial statements 1to 30

As per our report of even date

For Narendra Peddar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 106915W

Fmd

Narendra Poddar, Proprietor
Membership No. 041256

Mumbal, 16th July, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board

Director




ALOK WORLDWIDE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315T MARCH 2018

[PARTICULARS From 01-Apr-17 to 31-Mar-1i8 From 01-Apr-16 to 31-Mar-17
Rupees uspD Rupees uson
A} CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 33,186 662 23,40,331 34,885
Adjustments for @
Finance Cost 47,43,547 73,603 2,32,06,779 3,45,507
Operating profit before Working Capital Changes 47,76,733 74,265 2,55,47,110 3,80,792
Adjustments for :
(Decrease) / Increase in current liabilities & provisions - - - -
Increase in trade payables 48,03,845 ] 74,539 {5,91,15,932) (8,81,149)
Increase in Loans and advances 8,04,95,37,778 12,49,00,878 4,103,18,312 ) 6,11,396
Net cash used in operating activities (A) 8,05,91,18,356 12,50,49.682 74,49,490 1,11,039
B} CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investinents - - - -
Net cash used in investing activities (B} - - - -
C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital - - - - -
Proceeds from long-term borrowings (8,05,43,72,223)| {12,49,75,892} 1,54,21,416 2,29,863
Proceeds from shaoré-term borrowings {12,052) {187} 3,114,449 4,687
Finance cosis {47,43,547) (73,603} (2,32,06,779) {3,45,907)
Net cash generated from filnancing activities (C) {B,05,91,27 822} (12,50,49 682} (74,70,914} (1,11,357}
Net Increase in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C)} (9,466} i) (21,424) {318}
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 5,50,250 8,486 5,85,026 8,804
Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash equivatent 11,2180 {0 (12,352) -
‘Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the period 5,51,994 8,486 5.50,250 8,486

NOTES TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

1 Cash and Cash equivaleats included in the cash flow statement comprise the following bafance sheet amounts;

Particulars From 01-Apr-17 {0 31-Mar-18 From 01-Apr-16 fo 31-Mar-17

Rupees usop Rupees usp
Cash and Cash equivalents as per Balance sheet 5,51,994 B,486 5,50,250 8,486
Cash and Cash equivalents as restated at the end of period 5,51,994 5,486 5,50,250 8,486

2 The Cash Flow Statemant has baen prepared in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 3 "Cash Flow Statements”.

As per our report of even date

For Narendra Poddar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 106915W

o N

MarendratPoddar, Proprietor
Membership No. 041256

Murbal, 16th July, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board

Director

——

\fz




ALOK WORLDWIDE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Alok Worldwide Limited incorporated on 15th July, 2013 under the laws of British Virgin Island as
an ‘International Business Company’, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Alok Industries Limited, a
Company incorporated in India.

NOTE 1 : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Basis of preparation:

i)

it)

Compliance with Ind AS:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, hereinafter referred to as Ind AS.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company prepared
its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133
of the Companias Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

Historical cost convention:

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following: ‘

a. certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;

b. assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to
seli;

c. defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

iii) Translation to Indian Rupees:

The accounts are maintained in US Dollars belng currency of British Virgin Istand. The

accounts are translated to Indian Rupees as follows-

- All income and expenses are translated at the average rate of exchange prevailing
during the period.

- Assets and Liabilities are translated at the closing rate on the balance sheet date.

- Non-monetary assets and liabilities and share capital is translated at historical rates.

- Share Capital including Share Application Money is translated at historical rates.

- The resulting exchange difference is accumulated in *Foreign Currency Transiation
Reserve’

b) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and llabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-

current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

« Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

« Held primarily for the purpose of trading

s Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

+« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting pericd.

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liabllity Is current when:

« It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

+ It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

¢« Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least tweilve
months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ciassified as non-current assets and liabilities. The
operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

c) Revenue recognition:

i) Timing of recognition:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership in the goods are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract, there
is no continuing managerial inveolvement with the goods, the amount of revenue can be
measured rellably and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of the activities of the Company. This generally
happens upon dispatch of the goods to customers, except for export sales which are
recognised when significant risk and rewards are transferred to the buyer as per tha terms
of contract,

Eligible export incentives are recognised in the year in which the conditions precedent is
met and there is no significant uncertainty about the collectability.

ii) Measurement of revenue:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after the
deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the Government which are levied on sales such as sales tax, value added tax, etc.

Revenue includes excise duty as it is paid on production and is a liability of the
manufacturer, Discounts given include rebates, price reductions and other incentives given
to customers. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement,

The Company recognises provision for sales return, based on the historical results,
measured on net basis of the margin of the sale

The volume discounts are assessed based on anticipated annual purchases.
Rental Income

The Company’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is described in Note
1 {e) below.

Interest Income

For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is measured using
the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the
amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but
does not consider the expected credit losses,

Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established,
which Is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

d)} Investments and other financial assets:

Classification:
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
i) Those to be measured subsequently at fair vaiue {either through Other
Comprehensive Income, or through profit or loss), and
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NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

The classification depends on business model of the entity for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value,
gains and losses wilt either be recorded In profit or loss or Other Comprehensive Income.

For investments in debt instruments, it depends on the business model in which the
investment is held.

For Investments in equity instruments, it depends on whether the Company has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equlity investment at
fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

Initial recognition and measurement:
Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
terms of the instrument,

Transaction Cost

Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus/minus (in the case of financial
assefs are not recorded at fair value through profit or loss) transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financlai asset.

Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in Profit or Loss.

Subsequent measurement:
After initial recognition, financial assets are measured at:

i) Fair value {either through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) or through profit
or loss (FVPL)} or,
ii) Amortised cost

Debt instruments:
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the business model of the
Company for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt
instruments:

Measured at amortised cost: .

Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to coilect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate
{FIR) method less impairment, if any, the amortisation of EIR and loss arising from
impairment, if any is recognised in Profit or Loss.

Measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI):

Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both, seiling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income. Falr value movements are recognised in the OCI (net of taxes).
Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are
recognised In Profit or lLoss. On de-recognition, cumulative gain | (loss) previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to Profit or Loss.

Measured at fair value through profit or loss:

A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVPL.
Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including
interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as other income in Profit or Loss.

Equity instruments:

The Company subsequently measures all investments in equity instruments other than

subsidiary companies, associate company and Joint Venture Company at fair value. The

Management of the Company has elected to present fair value gains and losses on such

equity investments in Profit or Loss Bivid-egds from such investments continue to be
I By
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

recognised in profit or loss as other income when the right to receive payment Is
established. Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in Profit or Loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

Investments in subsidiary companies, associate company and joint venture
company :

Investments in subsidiary companies, associate company and Joint Venture Company are
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of
Impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down
immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiary
companies, assoclate company and Joint Venture Company, the difference between net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in Profit or Loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated
with its financlal assets carried at amottised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk. Note 44 details how the Company determines whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk. For trade and lease receivable only, the Company applies
the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which reguires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of such receivables.

De-recognition:
A financial asset is de-recognised only when
i) The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
asset ,or
iy Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but
-assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients

Where the eéntity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such
cases, the financial asset Is de-recognised. Where the entity has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
not de-recognised. Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financlal asset is
de-recognised if the Company has nol retained contro! of the financial asset. Where the
Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to
the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Financial liabilities & Equity instruments:

i} Classification as debt or equity - Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by
the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definltions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

i) Initial recognition and measurement - Financlal liabilities are recognised when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisiens of the instrument. Financial
liabilities are initially measured at the fair value.

iii) Subsequent measurement - Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Financial liahilities carried at fair
value through profit or loss is measured at fair value with all changes in fair value
recognised in Profit or Loss.

iv) De-recognition - A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

e) Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as Derivatives, at fair value at each
balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a Hability in an orderly tramnsaction between market participants at the measurement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

date, The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liabllity takes place either:

+ In the principal market for the asset or Hability, or
« 1In the absence of the principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset of
liabitity.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company, The fair
value of asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or llability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A falr value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
abllity to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset In its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unohservable inputs.

All assets and liabllities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

« Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

« Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

+ Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable,

External Valuers are Involved for valuation of significant assets such as certain items or
property, ptant and equipment. For the purpese of fair value disclosure, the Company has
determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks
of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

f)} Inventories:

Items of Inventories are valued on the basis given below:

1. Raw materials, packing materials, stores and spares: at cost determined on First -
in — First — Out {FIFO) basis or net realisable value whichever is lower,

it Process stock and finished goods: At cost or net realisable values whichever is
lower,

Cost comprises of cost of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the Inventory to its present location and condition.

The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated cost of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

Due allowances are made for slow moving and obsolete inventories based on estimates
made by the Company.

g) Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents Include cash in hand, demand deposits with bank and other
short-term (three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liguid investments
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that are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

) Trade receivable:

Trade recelvables are initially recognised at fair vaiue of the revenue. Subsequently, trade
receivables are stated at cost less provision for impairment, if any.

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s established policy, precedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of the customer is
assessed and individual limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding
customer receivables are regularly monitored,

The Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of provision / loss allowance on the Trade recejvables.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to measure ECL on its
portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is prepared based on histarically
observed default floating rates over the expected life of trade receivables and is adjusted
for forward-looking estimates. At each reporting date, the historically observed default
rates and changes in the forward-looking estimates are updated.

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in Profit or Loss under the head ‘Other expenses’.

i) Borrowings:

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method, Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.

Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
a Fnancial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as other income | {expense). Borrowings are classified as
current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
tiability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

j) Borrowing costs:

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

k) Provisions and contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settie the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. These are reviewed at each
year end and reflect the best current estimate. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole, A
provision is recognised even if the likelthood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations ma
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Provisions are measured at the present value of best estimate of the Management of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time Is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made.

1} Earnings per share:

Earnings per share (EPS) are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the EPS is the net profit
for the period and any attributable tax thereto for the period, The treasury shares are not
considered as outstanding equity shares for computing EPS.

m) Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign Currency Transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transaction.

Monetary items denominated in Foreign Currency are reported at the exchange rate prevailing
on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences relating to long term monetary ltems are
dealt with in the following manner:

Exchange differences relating to long term monetary items, arising during the period, in so
far as those relate to the acquisition of a depreciable capital asset are added to / deducted
from the cost of the asset and depreciated over the balance life of the asset

In other cases, such differences are accumulated in the “Foreign Currency Monetary
Translation Difference Account” and amortised to the statement of profit and loss over the
balance life of the long term monetary item.

All other exchange differences are deait with in profit or loss.

n) Critical estimates and judgements

Preparation of the Financial Statements requires use of accounting estimates which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual results. This Note provides an overview of the areas
that involved a higher degree of judgements or complexity, and of items which are more
likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be
different than those originally assessed, Detailed information about each of these estimates
and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of
calculation for each affected line item in the Financial Statements. The areas involving
critical estimates or judgements are:

] Estimation of useful life of tangible assets: Note 1(f)

i} Estimation of defined benefit obligation: Note 1 (t)
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may

have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.
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Note:2
Statement of Changes in Fauity for the vear ended 31 March 2018

A).EQUITY SHARE CAPIT As At As At

31st March, 2018 31 March 2017

INR usp INR usp
Balance at the beginning of the reporting yvear 2,213,940.00 50,000.00 2,213,940.00 50,000.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital during ‘the year - - - -
Baiance at the end of the reporting year 2,213,940.00 50,000.00 2,213,940.00 50,000.00
B) OTHER EQUITY Fareign Currency Monetary Item Retained earnings

: ENR usp INR UsD

Balance as at 1st April, 2017 (1,265,558.00) - 12,200,177.00 168,640.00
Addition/Reduction during the Year 144,498.00 - 33,186.00 661.00
Balance as of March 31, 2018 {1,121,060.00) - 12,233,363.00 169,301.00
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PAATICULARS AS AT AS AT AS AT AS AT
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 3i-Mar-17
Rupees usn Rupees uso
3, NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS {Unguoted)
Compuiserily convertible debentures of Grabai Alok International 3,252,205,000 56,600,000 3,241,930,000 50,000,000
Ltd.
Compuiscrily convertible debentures of Alok Industrias 1,496,014,300 23,000,000 1,49%,287,800 23,000,900
International Ltd.
4,748,219,300 73,000,000 4,733,217,800 73,000,000
4. LOANS '
Loans and advances to related parties - - 3.042,082,367 46,917,922
nd b 3,042,002,367 46,917,922
5. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
Prepatd expenses - - - -
&, CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Balance with bank
In current account 551,994 8.486 550,250 8,486
551,994 8,488 580,250 8,486
7. LOANS
Loans and advances io related parties 3,779,452,056 58,195,994 718,963,986 11,088,518
3,779,452,056 58,108,994 718,963,986 11,088,518
8. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid expenses - - 28,010 432
- - 28,010 432
9. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Shares
50.000 Equity Share of USD 1 each 3.002.550 50.000 3,002,550 50.000
. 3,002,550 50,000 3,002,550 50,000
Issuet, Subscrized and Pald Up
106 Equity Share of USD 1 each 5,252 100 5,252 100
6,252 100 6,252 100
Notes :
a} The company has been Incorporated as @ wholly owned subsidiary of Alok Industries Limited and there has been no change in the share capltal since incorperation,
b} 100 Shares are pledged in favour of Axis Trustee Services Limited as security for the credit facility sanctioned by Axis {Ewnited and Exim Bank to Alok Industries
Limited
¢} Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the baalnning and at the end of reporting period
Number of Equity Sharas
Partlculars AS AT AS AT
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Opening balance 100 100
Issued during the period - -
Closing balance 100 108
Amount of Eguity Shares
Partlculars AS AT AS AT AS AT AS AT
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-17
Rupees usp Rupees UsD
Opening balance 6,252 100 5,252 100
Issued during the pariod - - - -
(Closing halance 6,252 i0n 6,252 100

d) Terms/rlahts attached to eauity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having at par value of USD 1 per share. Each holder of equity share Is entitled te one vote per share, The shareholders

are entitled for dividend in USD as and when recommended by the Board of Directers and approved by the shareholders at the Annuat General Meeting.

In the event of liquidatior of the Company, the hofders of equily shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distributicn will be in prepertion to the number of equity shares held by the share holder.

e) Sharehoider holding more than 5 percent of the Share Capltal

Name of the shareholder 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
No of shares % No of shares %o
|Alek Industries Limited 100 100 100 100




10. RESERVES AND SURPLUS
a) Foreign currency translation reserve
Opesing Balance (1,265,558} (987,018)
Effect of farelgn exchange rate variation during the year 144,458 (278,540)
(1,121,060) - (1,265,558) -
b) Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance 12,200,177 168,640 9,859,846 133,755
Profit for the period 33,186 861 2,340,331 34,885
12,233,363 169,301 12,200,177 164,540
11,112,303 169,301 10,934,619 168,640
11, LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
Term lean from banks - - 60,407,220 931,655
From Holding Company - - 8,104,825,000 125,000,000
IND AS Adjustment - - (1,563,129.00) (24,108.00)
- - B,163,669,091 125,907,547
12, SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS {unsecured)
Loans and advances from related parties 66,429,539 1,621,300 66,219,662 1,021,300
Temporary Overdrawn Bank Balance 32,544 500 44,543 687
66,462,083 1,021,800 66,264,205 1,021,987
13. TRADE PAYABLES
Creditors for services 130,088 2,000 69,000 1,064
130,088 2,000 69,000 1,064
14, OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Maturities of Long term borrowings - - - -
Other Payables -
Term loan from banks 60,598,673 931,655
Advance from related party 8,380,975,902 128,852,208 249,771,774 3,852,208
Inierest Due an borrowlngs 8,938,052 137,415 4,137,472 63,812
8,450,512,627 129,921,278 253,509,246 3,916,020
PARTICULARS From 01-Apr-17 to 31-Mar-18 From O1-Apr-16 to 31i-Mar-17
Rupees usb Riupees usp
15. INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
Service charges 6,415,977 95,554 25,949,153 386,784
6,415,977 99,554 25,949,153 386,784
16. OTHER INCOME
Interest income
- Bank fixed deposit - - - -
- From other - - - -
Exchange rate difference gain {net) - - - -
Other Misc. Recelpts - - - -
17, FINANCE COST
Interest expenses 4,743,547 73,603 23,206,779 345,907
Other borrowing costs 1,563,122 24,108 - -
6,306,669 97,711 23,206,779 345,907
18. OTHER EXPENSES
Auditors remuneration (Including service tax) - - 69,000 1,028
Legal and professional fees 156,736 2,432 132,446 1,974
Bank charges (12,030} (187) 198,248 2,955
Miscellaneous Expenses (68,584} (1,064) - -
Exchange rate difference - - 2,349 35
76,122 1,181 402,043 5,992




14.

20,

RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES
As per Accounting Standard AS (AS} 18 “Related Party Disclosures”, Company's related partles disclosed as below:

] Names of related party and nature of relationship
Alok Industries Limited Holding Company
Alok Industsies International Limited Fellow Subsidiary
Grabal Atok International Limited Feliow Subsidiary
Grabal Alok (UK) Limited Feliow Subsidiary
Triumphant Victory Holdings Pvt. Limited Entity under cammon control
44 Transactlons with Related parties
Particulars of transaction / balance
In Rupees In USD
Equity share capital
I
Cpenlng Balance 6,252 100
{6,252} {100}
Received during the period - -
Balance as at March 31 6,252 100
{6.252) {100}
Other current liahllities
Alok Industries. Limited
Opening Balance 249,771,774 3,852,208
(62,848,632) {947,473}
Received during the period 8,055,925,534 125,000,000
Translation difference during the period 75,278,194
(7,954,362)
Batance as at March 31 8,380,975,502 128,852,208
. (249,771, 774) (3,852,208)
Trlumehant Victory Holdinas Pyl Ltd,
Opaning Balance 66,219,662 1,021,300
(67,480,459) (1,017,300)
Recelved during the perfod - -
Translation difference during the period 209,877 -
1,260,797 (4,000)
Balance as at March 31 66,429,539 1,021,300
(66,219,662} (1,021,300)
Investments
Aok Indusiries International Lid,
Opening Balance 1,496,014,300 23,000,900
{1,525,656,700) (23,000,000)
tMade during the period - -
Transfation difference during the period - -
34,368,900 -
Balance as at March 31 1,496,014,300 23,000,000
{1,451,287,800) (23,000,000)
Grabal Alel International Lid,
Gpeaning Balance 3,241,930,000 50,000,000
{3,316,645,000) (50,060,000}
Made during the period - -
Transiation difference during the period 10,275,000 -
74,715,400 -
Balance as at March 31 3,252,205,900 50,000,000
(3,244,930,000) {50,000,000)
Loans and advances (Long-term and short-term)
Alok Industries International Ltd,
Opening Balance t,575,773,376 24,303,013
{1,563,985,546) {23,577,825)
Recelived / {repaid) during the period 2,028,869 35,481
{46,735,487}) {725,188)
Translation difference during the peried 5,013,01% -
34,948,657
Balance as at Masch 31 1,582,815,264 24,334,454
{1,575,773,376} {24,303,013)
Grahal Alok International Lid,
Opening Balance 2,185,282,977 33,703,427
(2,131,631,080} (32,135,352}
Received during the pericd 4,387,128 66,073
(305,855,344} (4,745,813}
Transtatioa differeace during the periad 6,966,687
252,203,4%7
Balance as at March 31 2,196,636,792 33,771,500
(2,185,282,977 (33,703,427}
Interest expenses recoverad
Alok Industries International Ltd. - -
(3%,970,313) (595,775)
Grabal Alok International Lid. - -
{86,651,984.00) {1,255,163.00)
Service charges
Alok Industsies Interaational Ltd. 2,028,834 31,480
(8,353,767) (124,517)
Grabal Ajok International Ltd. 4,387,143 68,073
{17,595,386.34) {262,266.98)

SEGMENT REPORTING
The Company is engaged n the business of making strategic long term iavestment and all activiites revolve around such businass. Accordingly, this is the only reportabte
segmaent of tha company. G
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORY
To the Members of ALOK WORLDWIDE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ALOK WORLDWIDE LIMITED (“the Company”},
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Finandal Statements

2. The management and Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This
responsibility includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that are operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar.

Auditor’s Responsihility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken
into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to
be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the
financial statements, that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such
controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting pelicies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s management and Board of Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial stgtementg.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.
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Opinion '

6. In our opinicn and ta the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair-
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March 2018, and its profit and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

7. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report} Order, 2016 (“the Order”), as amended, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we state that this section is not applicable
to the company.

8. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion proper hooks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears
from our examination of those bhooks;

¢} the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the applicable Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164{2) of the Act.

“f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we report as
under with respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014::

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; as such the
question of commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.
fi. There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the period under report to transfer any
sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums
does not arise.

For Narendra Poddar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 106915W

N

Narendra Poddar, Proprietar
Membership No. 041256
Murnbai —16th luly, 2018




“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of ALOK
“WORLDWIDE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 {“the Act”) ~

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ALOX WORLDWIDE LIMITED (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended an that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance -Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. OQur audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
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financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2}
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion :
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of [ndia.

For Narendra Poddar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 106915W

o
Narendra Poldar, Proprietor
Membership No. 041256
Mumbai — 16" July, 2018
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MAR 2018

AS AT AS AT AS AT AS AT
PARTICULARS NOTES 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-17
Rupees usp Rupees usbD
1 ASSETS
{1) Non-current assets
(a) FInancial Assets
{i} Investments 3 4,74,82,19,300 7,30,00,000 4,73,32,17,800 7,30,00,000
(liy Loans 4 - - 3,04,20,92,367 4,68,17,922
{by Other Non Current Assets 5 - - ~ -
{2} Current assets
(a) Financiai assets
() Cash and cash equivalents [ 5,51,994 8,486 5,506,250 8,486
(il) loans 7 3,77,94,52,056 5,81,05,994 71,89,63,986 1,10,88,518
{(b) Other Current Assets 8 - - 28,010 432
TOTAL 8,52,82,23,350 13,11,14,480 8,49,48,52,413 13,10,15 358
II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1) Egquity
(a) Equity Share capltal 9 6,252 100 6,252 100
(b} Other equity 16 1,11,12,300 1,69,302 1,09,34,619 1,68,640
1,11,18,552 1,69,402 1,09,40,871 1,68,740
(2) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financilal liabilities
(1) Borrowings 11 - - 8,16,36,69,091 12,59,07,547
(3) Current liabilities
(a}) Financiai liabllities
(1Y Borrowlngs 12 6,64,62,083 10,21,800 6,62,64,205 10,21,987
{iiY Trade payables 13 1,306,088 2,000 69,000 1,064
(b)Y Other current liabilities 14 8,45,05,12,627 12,99,21,278 25,39,09,246 39,16,020
TOTAL 8,52,82,23,350 13,11,14,480 8,49,48,52,413 13,10,15,358
11T Notes forming part of the financlal statements 1to 30

As per our reportt of even date
For Narendra Poddar & Co.

Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 106915W

)
g

Narendra Poddar, Proprietor
Membership No. 041256

Mumbai, 16th July, 2018

For and on behalf of the Be,

Blrector




ALOK WORLDWIDE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENPED 31 MAR 2018

From 01-Apr-17 to 31-Mar-18

From 01-Apr-16 to 31-Mar-17

.PARTICULARS NOTES
Rupees UsD Rupees Uusb
I. REVENUE
Income from operations 15 64,15,977 §9,554 2,59,49,153 3,86,784
Other income 16 - - - -
Total (I) 64,15,977 99,554 2,59,49,153 3,86,784
I1. EXPENSES .
Finance costs 17 63,06,669 57,711 2,32,06,779 3,45,907
Qther expenses 18 76,122 1,181 4,02,043 5,992
Total (11) 63,882,791 98,892 2,36,08,822 3,51,899
1II. NET PROFIT/LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (I-II} 33,186 662 23,40,331 34,885
IV. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A (1) Items that wili not be reclassified to profit or loss ; : _ }
() Income tax relating to ltems that will not be B . _ _
reclassified to profit or loss
B (i) Itemns that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Net exchange Profit/Loss on translation 1,44,498.00 {2,78,540.00)
{it) Income tax relating to items that will be R B _ .
reclassified to profit or loss
V. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 1,77,684 662 20,61,791 34,885
PERIOD
VI, EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS
Basic 21 1,777 7 20,618 349
‘Diluted 23 1,777 7 20,618 349
VI1. Notes forming part of the financial statements 1to 30

As per our report of even date

For Narendra Poddar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 106915W

P

Narendra Poddar, Proprietor
Membership No. 041256

Mumbal, 16th July, 2018

Director




ALOK WORLDWIDE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315T MARCH 2018

From 01-Apr-17 to 31-Mar-18

From 01-Apr-16 to 31-Mar-17

[PARTICULARS
Rupees usp Rupees usp
A} CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 33,186 662 23,40,331 34,885
Adjustments for @
Finance Cost 47,43,547 73,603 2,32,06,779 3,45,907
Operating profit before Working Capital Changes 47,76,733 74,265 2,55,47,110 3,80,792
Adjustments for :
(Decrease) / Increase in current llabilities & provisions - - - -
Increase in trade payabies 48,03,845 ) 74,535 (5,91,15,932) (8,81,149}
Increase in Loans and advances 8,04,95,37,778 12,49,00,878 4,10,18,312 6,11,396
Net cash used in operating activities (A) 8.05,91,18,356 12,50,49,682 74,149,490 1,11,039
B} CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments - - - -
Net cash used in investing activities {B) - - - -
€} CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of equity shara capitai - - - - -
Proceeds fram long-term borrowings (8,05,43,72,223) {12,49,75,892) 1,54,21,416 2,29,863
Proceeds from short-term borrowings {12,052) (187) 3,14,449 4,687
Finance costs {47,43,547} (73,603} {2,32,06,779} (3.45,907)
Net cash generated from financing activitles (C) (8,05,91,27,822) (12,50,49,.682) (74,70,514) {1,11,357
Net Increase in Cash and Cash equlvalents (A+B+C} {9,466) 0 (21,424) (318)
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 5,50,25C 8,486 5,85,026 8,804
Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash eguivalent 11,210 {0) (12,352} -
‘Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the period 5,51,954 8,486 5,50,250 8,486

NOTES TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

1 Cash and Cash eguivalents inciuded in the cash flow staterment comprise the followlag batance sheet amounts:

From 01-Apr-16 to 31-Mar-17

Particulars From 01-Apr-i7 to 3i-Mar-18
Rupees use Rupees usp
Cash and Cash equivalents as per Balance sheet 5,51,994 8,486 5,50,250 8,486
cash and Cash equivalentis as restated at the end of period 5,51,594 8,486 5,50,250 8,486

2 The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 3 "Cash Flow Statements".

As per our report of even date

For Narendra Poddar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 136915W

N

Narendra'Poddar, Proprietor
Membership No. 641256

Mumbai, 16th luly, 2018

Director

For and on behalf of the Board

| E—




ALOK WORLDWIDE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Alok Worldwide Limited incorporated on 15th July, 2013 under the laws of British Virgin Island as
an ‘International Business Company’, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Alok Tndustries Limited, a
Company incerporated in India.

NOTE 1 : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Basis of preparation:

i) Compliance with Ind AS:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, hereinafter referred to as Ind AS.

For all perlods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company prepared
its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133
of the Companles Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

ii) Historical cost convention:

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following: ’

a. certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;

b. assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to
sell;

c. defined henefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

ifi} Translation to Indian Rupees:

The accounts are maintained in US Dallars being currency of British Virgin Island. The
accounts are translated to Indian Rupees as follows- :

- Alf income and expenses are translated at the average rate of exchange prevailing

during the period.

Assets and Liabilities are translated at the closing rate on the balance sheet date.

- Non-monetary assets and liabllities and share capital is translated at historical rates.
Share Capital including Share Application Money is transiated at historical rates.

The resulting exchange difference Is accumulated in ‘Foreign Currency Translation
Reserve’

H

b) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-

current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

s Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading

« Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is current when:

+ It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

s It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current




ALOK WORLDWIDE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The
operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

¢) Revenue recognition:

i} Timing of recognition:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership in the goods are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract, there
is no continuing managerial involvement with the goods, the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of the activities of the Company. This generally
happens upon dispatch of the goods to customers, except for export sales which are
recognised when significant risk and rewards are transferred to the buyer as per the terms
of contract,

Eligible export incentives are recognised in the year in which the conditions precedent is
met and there is no significant uncertainty about the collectability.

ii) Measurement of revenue:

Revenue ls measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after the
deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the Government which are levied on sales such as sales tax, value added tax, etc.

Revenue includes excise duty as it is paid on production and is a liability of the
manufacturer. Discounts given include rebates, price reductions and other incentives given
to customers. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

The Company recognises provision for sales return, based on the historical results,
measured on net basis of the margin of the sale

The volume discounts are assessed. based on anticipated annual purchases.
Rental Income

The Company’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is described in Note
1 (e) below.

Interest Income

For all debt Instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is measured using
the effective interest rate (ETR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estirmated future
cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the
amortised cost of a financial liability, When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but
does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established,
which Is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

d) Investments and other financial assets:

Classification:
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
I} Those to be measured subsequently at fair wvalue (either through Other
Comprehensive Income, or through profit or loss), and




ALOK WORLDWIDE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

The classification depends on business model of the entity for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value,
gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or Other Comprehensive Income.

For investments in debt instruments, it depends on the business model in which the
investment is held.

For investments in equity instruments, it depends on whether the Company has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at
fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

Initial recognition and measurement:
Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
terms of the instrument.

Transaction Cost _
Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus/minus (in the case of financial
assets are not recorded at fair value through profit or loss) transaction costs that are
attributabie to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in Profit or Loss.

Subsequent measurement:
After initial recagnition, financial assets are measured at:

i)  Fair value {either through Other Compiehensive Income (FVOCI) or through profit
or loss (FVPL)} or,
ity Amortised cost

Debt instruments:
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the business model of the
Company for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt
instruments:

Measured at amortised cost: .

Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate
(EIR) method less impairment, if any, the amortisation of EIR and loss arising from
impairment, if any is recognised in Profit or Loss.

Measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI):

Debt Instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income. Fair value movements are recognised in the OCI (net of taxes).
Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are
recognised in Profit or Loss. On de-recognition, cumulative gain | (lass) previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to Profit or Loss.

Measured at fair value through profit or loss:

A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVPL.
Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, Including
interest income and dividend income if any, recagnised as other income in Profit or Loss.

Equity instruments:

The Company subsequently measures all investments in equity instruments other than

subslidiary companies, associate company and Joint Venture Company at fair value. The

Management of the Company has elected to present fair value gains and losses on such

equity investments in Profit or Loss,.Bividends from such investments continue to be
%3

¥




ALOK WORLDWIDE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

recognised in profit or loss as other income when the right to receive payment is
established. Changes In the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in Profit or Loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment josses)
on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

Investments in subsidiary companies, associate company and joint venture
company :

Investments in subsidiary companies, associate company and Joint Venture Company are
carrled at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of
impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down
immediately to its recoverable amount. On dispesal of Investments in subsidiary
companies, associate company and Joint Venture Company, the difference between net
disposal proceeds and the carrylng amounts are recognised in Profit or Loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company assesses on a forward looking hasis the expected credit losses associated
with its financial assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk. Note 44 details how the Company determines whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk. For trade and lease receivable only, the Company applies
the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of such receivables.

De-recognition:
A financial asset is de-recognised only when
iy The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
asset ,or
ii) Retains the contractual rights te receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but
‘assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients

Where the eéntity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such
cases, the financial asset is de-recognised. Where the entity has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
not de-recognised. Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains
substantially alt risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
de-recognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset, Where the
Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to
the extent of continulng Involvement in the financial asset.

Financial liabilities & Equity instruments:

i) Classification as debt or equity - Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by
the Company are classifled according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

i) Initial recognition and measurement - Financial liabilities are recognised when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
liabilities are initially measured at the fair value.

iii) Subsequent measurement - Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities carried at fair
value through profit or loss is measured at fair value with all changes in falr value
recognised in Profit or Loss.

iv) De-recognition - A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

e) Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as Derlvatives, at fair value at each

balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald to

transfer a liability In an orderly tramsagtion between market participants at the measurement
P iy




ALOK WORLDWIDE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

« In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
« In the absence of the principal market, in the most advantagecus market for the asset of
tability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company. The fair
value of asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
yse when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
hest interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
seliing It to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financlal statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

o Level 1 ~ Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liahilities

« Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

« Level 3 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable,

External Valuers are Involived for valuation of significant assets such as certain items or
property, plant and equipment. For the purpose of fair value disclosure, the Company has
determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basls of the nature, characteristics and risks
of the asset or liabllity and the levei of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

f) Inventories:

Items of Inventories are valued on the basis given below:

i Raw materials, packing materials, stores and spares: at cost determined on First -
in - First - Out (FIFO) basis or net realisable value whichever is lower.

jii. Process stock and finished goods: At cost or net realisable values whichever is
lower.

Cost comprises of cost of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventory to its present location and condition.

The net realisable value is the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business
less the estimated cost of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the saie.

Due allowances are made for slow moving and obsolete inventories based on estimates
made by the Company.

g) Cash and cash equivaients:

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with bank and other
short-term (three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments




ALOK WORLDWIDE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

that are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

h) Trade receivable:

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value of the revenue. Subsequently, trade
receivables are stated at cost less provision for impairment, if any.

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company's established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of the customer is
assessed and individuat limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Qutstanding
customer receivables are regularly monitored.

The Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of provision / loss allowance on the Trade receivables.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrlx to measure ECL on its
portfolio of trade receivables, The provision matrix is prepared based on historically
observed default floating rates over the expected life of trade receivables and is adjusted
for forward-looking estimates. At each reporting date, the historically observed default
rates and changes in the forward-looking estimates are updated.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense In Profit or Loss under the head *Other expenses’.

i} Borrowings:

Borrowings are initially recognised at falr value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or
foss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.

Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial Habllity that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as other income | (expense). Borrowings are classified as
current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right ko defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

j) Borrowing costs:

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributabie to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is reguired to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or saie. Qualifying
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

k} Provisions and contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. These are reviewed at each
year end and reflect the best current estimate. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by constdering the class of obligations as a whole, A
provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may.be, small,
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Provisions are measured at the present value of best estimate of the Management of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time Is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more unceriain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made,

[) Earnings per share:

Earnings per share (EPS) are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the EPS is the net profit
for the period and any attributable tax thereto for the period. The treasury shares are not
considered as outstanding equity shares for computing EPS.

m) Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign Currency Transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transaction.

Monetary items denominated in Foreign Currency are reported at the exchange rate prevailing
on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences relating to long term monetary items are
dealt with in the following manner:

« Exchange differences relating to long term monetary items, arising during the period, in so
far as those relate to the acquisition of a depreciable capital asset are added to / deducted
from the cost of the asset and depreciated over the balance life of the asset

« In other cases, such differences are accumulated in the “Foreign Currency Monetary
Translation Difference Account” and amortised to the statement of profit and loss over the
balance life of the long term monetary item.

All other exchange differences are dealt with in profit or loss.

n) Critical estimates and judgements

preparation of the Financial Statements requires use of accounting estimates which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual results. This Note provides an overview of the areas
that involved a higher degree of judgements or complexity, and of items which are more
likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be
different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates
and judgements is included in relevant notes together with informatiocn about the basis of
calculation for each affected line item in the Financial Statements. The areas involving
critical estimates or judgements are:

i) Estimation of useful life of tangible assets: Note 1(f)

i) Estimation of defined benefit obligation: Note 1 (t)
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may

have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.
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Note:2
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2018

AY EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year
Changes in Equity Share Capital during _the year
Balance at the end of the reporting year

As At As At
31st March, 2018 31 March 2017
INR usop INR usb
2,213,940.00 50,000.00 2,213,940.00 50,000.00
2,213,840.00 50,000.00 2,213,940.00 50,000.00

Foreign Currency Monetary Item

Retained earnings

B) OTHER EQUITY

INR LSE INR uso
Balance as at 1st April, 2017 (1,265,558.00) - 12,260,177.00 168,640.00
Addition/Reduction during the Year 144,498.00 - 33,186.00 661.00
Balance as of March 31, 2018 (1,121,0660.00) - 12,233,363.00 169,301.00
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PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT AS AT AS AT
31-Mar-i8 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-17
Rupees usp Rupees ush
3. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS {Uncuoted)
Compulsorily convertible debentures of Grabal Alok International 3,252,205,000 50,000,000 3,241,53C,000 50,000,000
Ltd.
Compulsority convertible debentures of Alok Industries 1,496,014,300 23,000,000 1,491,287,800 23,000,000
International Ltd.
4,748,219,300 73,000,000 4,733,217,800 73,000,000
4. LOANS
Loans and advances to related parties - - 3.042.092.367 45,917,922
- b 3,042,002 367 46,917,922
5. OTHER NOMN CHRRENT ASSETS
Prepaid expenses - - - -
6. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Balance with bank
In current account 551,994 8,486 550,250 8,406
551,994 8,486 550,250 8,486
7. LOANS
Loans and advances to related parties 3,779,452,056 58,105,994 718,963,986 11,088,518
3,779,452,056 58,105,994 718,963,986 11,088,518
8, OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid expenses - - 28,010 432
- - 28,010 432
9. SHARE CAPITAL
Authotlsed Shares
50,000 Equity Share of USD 1 each 3,002,550 50,000 3,002,550 50,00C
. 3,002,550 50,000 3,002,550 50,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up
100 Equity Share of 58 1 each 6,252 100 &,252 100
6,252 100 6,252 100
Notes ¢
&) The company has been incorporated as a wholly owned subsidiary of Alok Industries Limited and there has baan no chaage in the share <apital since incorporation.
b) 1900 Shares are piedged In faveur of Axis Trustee Services Himited as sacurity for the cradit fadility sanctionad by Axis Limited and Exim Bank to Alok Industries
Limited
¢} Reconctliation of equity shares cutstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period
Number of Equity Shares
Particulars AS AT AS AT
3i-Har-18 31-Mar-17
Opening balance 100 160
Issued duting the period - -
Closing balance 100 100
Amount of Equity Shares
Particulars AS AT AS AT AS AT AS AT
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-18 31-HMar-17 31-Mar-17
Rupees usp Rupees usp
Ogpening balance 6,252 1080 6,252 100
issued during the pericd - - - -
Closing batance 65,252 100 6,252 100

d} Terms/rights attached to equity shares

Fhe Company has onaly one ¢lass of equity shares having at par vaiue of USD L per share. Each hofder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The sharehalders

are entitled for dividend in USD as and whan recommended by the Board of Diracters and approved by the shareholders at the Annugl Generai Meeting.

In the event of liquidaticn of the Company, the hoiders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distributicn of all preferential
amounts. Tha distributlon will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the share hotder.

&} Shareholder holding more than 5 percept of the Share Capital

Mamie of the shareholder 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
No of shares Ya No of shares %
Alok Industries Limited 100 100 106G 100




10. RESERVES AND SURPLUS
a) Foreign currency translation reserve
Openlng Batance '(1,265,558) (987,018)
Effect of foreign exchange rate varlation during the year 144,498 (278,540
(1,121,060) - (1,265,558) E
b} Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
QOpening Balance 12,200,177 168,640 9,859,846 133,755
Profit for the period 33,186 661 2,340,331 34,885
12,233,363 169,301 12,200,177 168,640
11,112,303 169,301 10,934,619 168,640
11. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
Term loan from banks - - 60,407,220 931,655
From Holding Company - - 8,104,825,000 125,600,000
IND AS Adjustment - - (1,563,129.00) (24,108.00}
- - B8,163,669,091 125,907,547
12, SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS (unsecured)
Leans and advances from related parties 66,429,53% 1,021,360 66,219,662 1,021,300
Temporary Overdrawn Bank Balance 32,544 500 44,543 687
66,462,083 1,023,800 66,264,205 1,021,987
13. TRADE PAYABLES
Creditors for services 130,088 2,000 69,000 1,064
130,088 2,000 69,000 1,064
14. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Maturities of Long term borrowings - - - -
Other Payables -
Term loan from banks 60,598,673 931,655
Advance frorn relaied party 8,380,975,902 128,852,208 249,771,774 3,852,208
Interest Due on borrowings 8,938,052 137,415 4,137,472 63,812
8,450,512,627 129,921,278 253,909,246 3,916,020
PARTICULARS From OL-Apr-17 to 31-Mar-18 From 01-Apr-16 to 31~Mar-17
Rupees Usp Rupees uso
i5. INCOME FROM DPERATIONS
Service charges 6,415,977 59,554 25,949,153 386,784
6,415,977 59,554 25,949,153 386,784
16. OTHER INCOME
Interest income
- Bank fixed deposit - - - -
- Fromn other - - - -
Exchange rate difference gain (aet) - - - -
Other Misc. Receipts - - - -
17. FINANCE COST
Interest expenses 4,743,547 73,603 23,206,779 345,907
Other borrowing costs 1,563,122 24,108 - -
6,306,669 97,711 23,206,779 345,907
18. OTHER EXPENSES
Auditors remuneration {inciuding service tax) - - 69,000 1,028
Legal and professional fees 156,736 2,432 132,446 1,974
Bank charges (12,030} {187) 198,248 2,955
Miscellaneous Expenses (68,584} (1,0564) - -
Exchange rate difference - - 2,349 35
76,122 1,181 402,043 5,992




14,

20.

RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

As per Accounting Stendard AS (AS) 18 “Related Pariy Disclosures”, Company's related partfes disclosed as below:

I Names of related party and nature of relationship
Alck Industries Limited
Alok Industries Interpational Limited
Grabal Alok International Limited
Grabal Alok (UK} Limited
Trivmphant Victory Holdings Pet. Limited

Holding Compaay
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Entity undar common control

I Transactions with Related parties
Partfculars of transactlon / balance
In Rupees In USD
Equlty share capltal
Alok Industries Limited
Opening Balance 6,252 100
(6,252) (100}
Received during the period - -
Balance as at March 31 6,252 190
(6,252) (100}
Other current liahilities
I Li
Opening Balznce 249,771,774 3,852,208
(62,848,632) (947,473}
Recelved during the period 8,055,925,934 125,000,000
‘Translation difference during the period 75,278,194
(7,954,362)
8,380,975,902 128,852,208

Balance as at March 331
Triumphant Victory Holdinas Pyl. Ltd,
Oopening Balance
Received during the pariod
Translation difference during the period

Balance as at March 3%

Investments

A I 4 Inter o Ll
Opening Balznce
Made during the period
Translation difference during the period

Balance as at March 31

I T (i L
{pening Balance

Mada during the period
Translation difference during the pedod

Balance as at March 31

Loans and advances (Long-term and short-term}
Opening Balance
Recelved / (repaid} during the period
Translation gifference during the pertod
Balance as at March 33

A I fi] L

Qpentag Balance
Recelved during Lhe periad
Transtation difference during the perod
Balaace as at March 3%

Interest expenses recovered
Alok Industries [nteraational Ltd,
Grabal Alok International Led.

Service charges

Alok Industries International Ltd,

Grabal Alok International Ltd.

(249,771,774)

€6,219,662
(67,480,459

209,877

1,260,797

66,429,539
(86,2:9,662)

1,496,014,300
(1,525,656,700%

34,368,900
1,496,014,300
(1,491,287,800}

3,241,930,000
(3,316,645,000%

10,275.000

74,715,006

3,252,205,000
(3,241,930,000)

1,675,773,376
(1,563,985,546)
2,028,86%
{46,736,487)
5,013,61%
34,548,657
1,582,815,264
(1,575,773.376)

2,185,282,577
(2,131,631,08C)
4,387,128
{305,855,344)
6,966,687
252,203,447
2,196,636,792
(2,185,282,977)

{39,870,313)

(86,691,984.0C)

2,028,834
{8,353,767)

4,387,143
(17,595,386.34)

(3,852,208)

1,021,300
(1,017,300}

(4,000}
1,024,300
(1,02£,300)

23,000,000
(23,000,000

23,080,000
{23,000,000)

50,000,000
{50,000,0G0)

50,060,000
{50,000,000)

24,303,013
{23,577,825)

31,481
(725,188)

24,114,464
{24,303,013)

33,703,427
{32,135,352)

68,073
{4,745,813)

33,771,500
{33,703,427)

(595,775)

(1,295,163.00)

31,480
(124,517)

68,073
{262,266.98)

SEGHMENT REPORTING

The Company Is engaged in the business of making strateglc long term investment and ali activities revoive arcund such bustness.

segmant of the company.

Accerdingly, this is the enly repertable
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

As At 31-Mar-18 As At 31-Mar-17 ]

Particulars Amount {INR} Amount (USD) Amount {INR) Amount (USD} ]
Net profit for the period 1,77,681 662 20,61,791 34,885
Weighted average number of equity shares 100 100 100 100
Nominal Value of equity share N.A. 1 N.A. 1
Basle and Difuted Earning per share ’ 1,777 7 20,618 349

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, equity includes issued equlity capital, convertible preference shares, share premium aad all other equity reserves
attribulable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximize the sharehalder value, The Company’s
Capital Management objectives are to malintain equity Including ail reserves to protect ecenomic viability and o finance any growth opportunities that may be availabie
in fulure so as to maximlze sharehoiders’ value. The Company Is monitoring capltal using debt equity ratio as Its base, which is debt to equity. The company’s policy Is to
keep debt equity ratio below three and infuse capital if and whan required through Issue of new shares and/or better aperational results and efficient working capital
management.

In erder te achieve the aforesaid objectives, the Company has not sanctioned any major capex on new expanslion projects in last two to three years, However,
modernization, upgradation and marginal expanslens have been continted to remain competitive and fmprove product guallty through efficlent machinery. There Is
constant andeavour to reduce debt as much as feasible and practical by improving operatlonal and working capital management.

i R T Eus UsD
Debt (A) 8,51,69,74,710.34 13,09,43,078.19 | 6,22,99,33,296.00 32,99,38,007.05]
Equity (B) 1,11,18,552.00 1,69,402.00 1,09,40,871.00 1,68,740.00
Debt / Equity Ratio (A / B) 766.01 772.97 752.22 770.05

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Campany’s princlpal firancia! llabllities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and barrowlngs, trade and other payables. The Company’s principal financial assets
inclede loans, trade and other recelvables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Company also holds FVTOCI investments and
enters into dertvative fransactions.

The Company Is exposed ta market risk, credik risk and Equidity risk. The Company’s senlor management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior
management provides assurance that the Company’'s financlai risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified,
measured and managed In accordance with the company’s policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by teams
that have the approgriate skills, experience and supervisicn. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below.

A Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet It ebligation under a financial instrument or custorner contract leading to a financiat foss. The Company expose to
credit risk mainly from trade recelvables and other financial assets.

B Market Risl:

Market risk Is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices, Market risk corprises of three
types of risks — interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk In a fluctuating market environment. Financiai instrument affected by market risks inciudes loans and
porrowings, deposits, FVTOCI Investments, derivatives and other financlal assets.

iy Currency Risk
This is the risk that the Company may suffer losses as a result of adverse exchange rate movement during the retevant perlod. As a policy, Company Is covering all

foreign exchange risk on account of import and loans s¢ that Compaay may not be put to any loss situation due to adverse fluctuations in currency rates. There is
periodical review of foreign exchange transactions ang hedging by the Company's executives.

Foreign Currency Sensitivity

The foliowing tables demenstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change In USD and EUR exchange rates, with ali other variables held constant. The Impact on
the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the falr value of monetary assets and liabilities Including non-deslgnated foreign currency derivatives, The
Cempany's exposure ko foreign currency changes for atl other currencies is not material,

Particular {Currency Change in rate Effect on profit before |Change in rate Effect on profit before
5 ) {upward) tax {downward) tax
31-Mar-18{Furo G.05 0.05 -0.05 -0.05

GBP 0.05 0.06 -0.05 -0.06
31-Mar-17|Euro .05 0.06 -0.05 -0.06

GBP 0.05 0.07 -0.05 -0.G67

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis Is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure af the end of the reperting period does
net reflect the exposure during the year,

i) Interest rate risk




The Company manages interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolls of fixed and variabie rate of interest on loans and barrowings. To manage thls, Company has
issued fixed rate bonds and foans taken from banks are linked to MCLR rate of the bank, which are variable.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitlvity to a reasanably possible change In interest rates on that portien of loans and borrowings affected. With all other
variables held canstaat, the Company's profit befare tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Currency Increase / decrease In|Effect on profit
basis poinis before tax
31/Mac/2018 usnD 25.00 0.02
uso -25.00 -0.02
31/Mar/2017 usb 25.00 2.01
usp -25.00 -0.01

The assumed movernent In basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis Is based on the currently observable market environment, showing a signlificantly higher

volatllity than in prior years,

iii) Equity Price Risk

The Company is exposed to equity price risks arising frem equity iavestments. Equity investments are held for strategic rather than trading purposes. The Company
does not actively trade these Investmants. Profit Tar the year ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 would have been unaffected as the equity investments are

FVTOCT and no investments were disposed of or impaired.

i} Liguidity risk management

The Company manages liquidity risk by continueusly monitoring forecast and actual cash flows on dally, monthly and yearly basis, The Company ensures that there is a
free credit limit available at the start of the year which is sufficieat for repayments getting due in the easuing year. Loan arrangements, credit limits with various banks
including working capital and monitoring of operational and working capltai issues are always kept in mind for befter iiquidity management.

ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

The follewing tabies deta#i the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The amount disclosed
in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial Habilities based an the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

To the extent that interest Hows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derlved from interest rate curves at the end of the reparting period. The contractual
maturity is based an the earliest date on which the Campany may be requlred to pay.

31-Mar-18 Currency On Demand | Beyond 1 Year Total
(a) Non Derivatlve financiai instruments
Long term borrowings uso - -
INR - -
Shert term berrowings UsD 1,021,800 1,021,800
INR 66,462,083 66,462,083
Trade payables
Trade payables - other than micro and small ent, uso 2,000 2,000
' R 130,088 130,088
Other current liabilities Usb 129,921,278 129,921,278
INR 8,450,512,627 8,450,512,627
(b) Derivative financial instruments
Ferelgn exchange forward contracts
31 March 2017 Currency On Demand Beyond 1 Year Total
{a) Non Derlvative financial instruments
Leng term borrowings usop 125,907,547 125,907,547
INR 8,163,669,091 8,163,669,091
Short term borrowings use 1,021,987 1,021,987
INR 66,264,205 66,264,205
Trade payables
Trade payabies - other than micro and smalf ent. [H 1,064 1,064
INR 69,000 69,000
Other currest liabilities usD 3,916,020 3,916,020
INR 253,909,246 253,909,246
(b} Derivative financial instruments
Foreign exchange forward contracts




24.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Set out belowy, is a comparisen by class of tha carrylng amaunts and faic value of the Company’s financial instruments that are recognised [n the financial statemants,

5r. No. Particulars Currency Carr) value
Financial Asset
(a) Carried at amortised cost
n Loans to related parties LsSD - 46,917,922,00 46,017,922.00 46,917,922.06
INR - 3,042,092,367.90 3,051,734,000,00 | 3,042,0%2,367.00
(i) Other receivables usp - 432.00 575.00 432.00
INR - 28,010,080 37,400.00 28,010.00
{iH} Cash and cash equivalent usp 8,486.00 8,486.00 8,486.00 B,486.00
INR 551,934,080 550,350.00 551,994.00 550,25C.00
Financlal Liabilities
{a) Carried at amartised cost
{n Borrowings usp 1,021,800.00 126,529,534.00 126,022,051.00 126,929,534.00
1INR 66,452,083.00 8,229,533,296.00 8,i96,990,898.00 | 8,229,933,256,00
[{)} Trade payable usp 2,000,600 1,064.00 3,797.00 1,964.90
INR §30,088.00 69,000,00 246,943.00 69,000.00
{iil)  |Cther payables usD 129,521,278,1% 3,916,020.00 4,921,276.19 3,916,020.00
R B,450,512,627,34 253,909,246.00 320,100,127,34 253,909,246.00
_—

The Company malntains pollcies and procedures to value financlal assets or financlal fiabifitles using the best and most relavant data available, In additlan, the Company Internatly reviews
valuatians, including Independent price valldation for certain instruments. Further, In other instances, Cempany retains sdependent pricing vendors to assist In correborating the valuations of

certain Instriments,

The fair value of the financial assets and fiabiities are included at the amount at which the Instrument 3hat would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer liabllity In ar: orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement dale,

The foliowing methods and assumptions wers used to estimate the fair values:

i} Fair value of security deposits have been estimated using a DCF moda!, The valuation requires management to make certan assumplions about Interest rates, maturity period,

credit risk, forecasted cash flows,

ity Long-tenn fixed-rate and variable-rate recelvables/bosrowings are evaluated by the company based on parameters such as interest rates, Individuat creditwarthiness of the
customer and the risk characterstics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, zilbwances are taken Into account for the expected credit josses of these receivables. As of
reperting date the carrying amounts of such recelvables, net of allewances are not materially different froms their ealculated falr values.

iii} Carrying value of toans from banks, other noncurrent berrowings and other financlal llabiitlas |s estimated by discounting future cash fows using rates currentiy avallable for debt

on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturitles. Fhe own nen-performance rlsk as at reposting dale was assessed Lo be Inslgnlficant,

Fair value hierarchy

The jolloving table provides the fair vaiue measurement hlerarchy of Campany's assets and liabilities grouped Into Level i to Level 3 as described In slgnificant accounting policies - Nete 2,
Further table describes the valuation techriques used, key Inputs ta valuations and gquantiiative informatlon about significant unobservable inputs for fair value measurements,

Quantitative disclesures fair value measurement hlerarchy for assets as at 31 March 2018:

Particulars Vakuation Inputs used
Sr. No. Currency Fair Value Measurement technique used
Llave| 1 Lavet 2 Level 3
Assels and liabilities for which fair values are disclosed
{a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Loans to related parties - Discounted cash Faracast cash
1)} uso - Fows
1NR - flows, discount
rate, maiurity
{n Gther recelvabies usp - -
INR -
{b} Financial liahility measured at amartised cost
" |Borrowings Discounted cash Forecast cash
(0] uso 1,02£,800.00 flows
INR - £6,462,083.00 - flows, discount
rate, fMaturity
L} Other pavables usn - 12%,921,278.19 -
INR - £,450(,512,622.34 -
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurament hlerarchy for assets as at 31 March 2017
Particulars Valuation Inputs used
Sr. Nou Currency Falr Vajue Measurement techniaue used
lavel 1 Level 2 Levetl 3
Assets and liabilities for which fair values are disclosed
(a) Financial assats measured at amortised cost
Loans to related parties - - |Discounted cash Forecast cash
0] usD 46,917,922.00 fiows
R 3,042,092,367.00 Rows, discount
rate, maturity
(i) Other receivables use - 432.00 -
HR 28,010.00
(b) Financial liabltity measured at amortised cost
Burrowings Discounted cash Faorecast cash
W usp 126,929,534.00 Nows
INR - 6,229,933,296.00 - flows, discount
rate, maturlty
{ii) Other payables usp 3,916,020.00 -
IMR - 253,909.246.00 -
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During the year ended 31 March 2018 ,there were no transfers between levei 1 and ievel 2 fair value measurements and Ao transfers inte and out of level 3 fair value measurement

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, cash credit and all other current financial assets and #abllities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the
short-term maturities of these instruments

The fair value of the financial assets and Jiabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than #a a forced or Hquidation sala.
The fallowing methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Recelvables are evaluated by the company based on parameters such as interest rates and Individual credit worthiness of the customer, Based on this evaluation, aliowances are taken Inte account for
ihe expected credit losses of these receivables.

The fair value of loans from banks and other financial liabliities, security deposit, as weli as other financial liabliities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt
on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturitles,

Fhe fair values of the uaquoted equity Instrumants kave been estimated using a net ddjusted fair value method. The valuation requires management to make cerfain assumptions about the assets,
lizbilities, investments of Investae Company. The probabilities of the varfous assumplicns can be reasonably assessed and are used In management’s estimate of fair value for these unquoted equlty
Investments based on the best information avaiiable to the Company.

The fair values of quoted equity instruments are <erived from quoted market prices in active markets,

The Company enters Into foreign exchange forward contracis are vajued using valuation technigues, which emplioys the use of market observable inputs.

The fair value of floating rate borrowings are determined by using DCF method using discount rate that refiects the Issuer's barrewing rate at the end of the reporting period. The own noa-performance
risk as end of year was assassed to be insignificant,

Service charges represents income received/accrued towards reimbursement of éxpenses incurred for investes company with a markup of 1%.

This Company Is a Foreign Company and Substdiary of an Indiar Company. Hence there was no dealing in Indian Currency,
Henceferth fule 13D of the Companies {Audit & Auditors) Amendment Rules 2017 is not applicable.

EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
All transactions reflected in these financial statements are ia forelgn currency l.e. other than Indian Rupees,

In the present financial statements, the financial instruments wheh are getting eliminated in consofidated financial statements are not valued at falr vaiue as per Indian Accounting Standards {IND AS). Also, the
Corporate Guarantes issued by the Parent Company i.e. Alok Industries Limited #a not valued at fair value as it would ba eliminated in the tonsolidated financial statements,

The information coatzined in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, disclesed in US dollar is extracted fram the books of accounts {ocally maintained and converted Into Indian Rupees as
disclosed under basis of preparation stated above. The amounts in Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and cash flow statement are rounded off to the nearest Rupee / 45D, Previous period figures have
een regrouped / reciassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's class#ication / disclosure,

Previous period's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current perjod's ¢lassification / disclosure and are given in brackets,

Slgnature o Notes 1 to 30

As per our report of even date

Far Narendra Poddar & Co, For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

FRN No. 1069:5W
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